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The following shall be a part of RFP 3238.  If a vendor has already returned a proposal and any of the information provided below changes that proposal, please submit the changes along with this amendment.  You need not re-submit an entire proposal prior to the opening date and time.


1.	Section 6.1.3 on Page 33; the URL for the SOS is out of date.

The URL for the SOS is https://nvsos.gov 

2.	Can you provide us with the source code and empty database files (no data to avoid privacy 	concerns) for the applications so we can understand the size and complexity of the application? 	As an alternative, can you provide us with the number of screens in the applications?

RFP Attachment: N – MHD Operation and Information Technology Overview (document imbedded in page 92) provides some description of the existing systems.  The agency will look at providing additional information on the current systems and publish it as a follow-up to this amendment.  

3.	Regarding requirement #6.2.2.1 on page 37 of the RFP for "Seals”, “Parks," if a vendor does 	not have direct experience specific to manufactured housing solutions, but has extensive 	experience successfully implementing “systems for other government agencies that perform 	similar functions as MHD," including permitting, licensing, issuing certificates, inspections and 	similar regulatory processes, will that vendor be disqualified or severely downgraded?  Will the 	state remove or alter these specific requirements in order to allow for a more competitive 	bidding process including vendors highly qualified per other RFP requirements, and based on 	many successful implementations with state regulatory agencies in various industries?

We believe the question refers to section #6.3.2.1.  The agency understands that “Seals” and “Parks” are very unique and most vendors will not have delivered this specific functionality to their referenced clients.  Vendors will not be disqualified or downgraded because they have not delivered this specific functionality on previous projects.  

The agency is most interested in a vendor who can demonstrate they can deliver a solution that meets the agency’s requirements.  Experience with similar functions such as permitting, licensing, inspections, titling, and other regulatory functions are important. 

4.	We have a Named User licensing structure. We define Named Users as "staff with access to the 	back-office Software regardless of whether such access is concurrent or consecutive." Based on 	this definition, how many Named Users does the agency anticipate having on its new system?

The agency anticipates having 16 Named Users for this RFP, with the capability for more in the future.

5.	Your RFP mentions a need for certain third-party data-exchange interfaces (API’s for 	OpenText, File 360, etc.). Please provide an inventory of all required system interfaces and the 	purpose of each. Also, please note if each interface will be one-way or two-way.

There are no interfaces to other systems required within the scope of this project.  The one potential future interface is with the OpenText, File 360 document management system, which stores title documents.  The envisioned interface is to tie title data in the new system with electronic title documents in the OpenText system.  

Vendors should identify if their systems have the capability to interface with other systems, like OpenText, in the event the state decides to implement an interface in the future.

Again, there are no interfaces to other systems required within the scope of this project.

6.	In addition to the desired public website functionality described in the RFP, what other public 	functionality does the agency intend to have for its new system? 

RFP defines website functions in attachment N on pages 21, 31 and 37. Other desired public website functionality are defined in Attachment O ~ Requirements Matrix. 

7.	Can the State specify which license type(s) will require which types of online functionality (e.g. 	online applications, renewals, verifications, disciplinary processes, etc.)?

No license type(s) will require online functionality.

8.	Please provide the names of all system outputs required, including reports, queries, and 	correspondences.  Also provide the audience and the location from which each will be run 	(back-office, public website, specific login-secured area of public website, etc.).  If such details 	are not available at this time, please provide at least the total numbers of each type of output 	required.

Specific details are not available at this time as the Division is requesting an ad hoc reporting solution that is configurable from any data fields in the database. Users will be able to request their reporting and analysis solution “as the occasion requires,” without having to request queries from IT. The audience for reports, queries, and correspondences will be for back office only.



9	Please fully define and quantify the ongoing support the agency will require after system 	implementation, including inclusion or exclusion of each item (and sub-item) in the following 	categories:
	(a)	Help Desk Support (24x7 emergency support, end-user support, configuration and 		troubleshooting, developer-to-developer support, hardware/network/security tips, 			architecture and best practice guidance, online remote desktop support, dedicated 			account management, local user group support)

In general the agency’s operation is 7am – 5pm, Monday through Friday.  User and technical support is typically required during these time periods.  If there is a critical system problem, then technical staff will need to be on call outside of normal business hours.  

	(b)	Training and Documentation (web courses, agency-specific process training, software 		training, core software documentation, user conference)

The expectation is that the majority of training and documentation will be completed prior to production go-live.  After production go-live, there should be a support resource available to answer questions on the use of the system (or troubleshooting issues) on an as needed basis. 

	(c)	Software Patches and Releases (new major version software release versions, 			installation of new software versions, core software patches, installation of core 			software patches)

This will probably vary depending if the solution is a custom built system or Commercial-Off-The-Shelf (COTS) system, and how it is hosted – state hosted or vendor hosted (cloud).  The table below provides a general outline of the type of support needed.

	Hosting\Solution
	Custom System
	COTS

	Vendor Hosted (cloud)
	Vendor:
· OS patches & upgrades
· Application software upgrades and defect fixes
· Infrastructure software (e.g. Oracle, SQL Server, JBoss, etc.) upgrades & patches
	Vendor:
· OS patches & upgrades
· Application software upgrades and defect fixes
· Infrastructure software (e.g. Oracle, SQL Server, JBoss, etc.) upgrades & patches

	State Hosted
	State does:
· OS patches & upgrades
· Basic database support

Vendor: 
· Fixes software defects
· Assists state with application software and infrastructure software upgrades & patches
	State does:
· OS patches & upgrades
· Basic database support

Vendor: 
· Fixes software defects
Assists state with application software and infrastructure software upgrades & patches



	(d)	Customization, Enhancement, and Corrections (design/configuration/testing support, 		customization projects, customization tasks, defect correction, installation of 			customization corrections)

See table above for question 9.c.

	(e)	Hosting Service (weekly backup, daily backup, hosting of proposed proprietary 			software solution, IP address owned and provided by Company, maintenance of hosting 		environment, data security)

If the system is hosted by the state, then the state will handle backups.  If the system is vendor hosted, then the vendor must provide robust, secure backup and recovery process and infrastructure.  

10.	After the new system is implemented, what growth and need for enhancements does the agency 	anticipate with respect to the number of users, programs, and/or processes?

The agency anticipates having 16 users for this RFP, with the capability for more in the future.

11.	Can you elaborate on the agency's preferences regarding hosting with the vendor?

The agency is open to vendor hosted (cloud) or state hosted.  The agency will evaluate the merits of each, considering costs, benefits, and vendor’s proven ability to deliver.  Vendors can propose both types of hosting solutions in their proposals.  

12.	 As a COTS software provider, we have a standard license agreement and additional contract 	terms which need to be incorporated into the procurement process.  Where in our response 	should these appear?

Tab VII – Scope of Work Response, and/or Tab XII – Other Information

13.	We offer multiple support plan options in addition to the primary support plan we will be 	proposing.  How would you like us to incorporate the additional options and corresponding 	contract language into our proposal, to provide the agency with the right and option to choose 	from our full range of support options in the future?

Vendors must clearly identify various scenarios when submitting their proposal.
	
14.	Can you elaborate on any need for mobile inspection/field investigation capabilities?  If there is 	any need, please respond to the following:
	(a)	How many mobile devices would the agency need set up to use on the new system?

The Division would need to have the capability of 6 mobile devices now, and the capability to add more in the future.

	(b)	Would the agency need to use its own devices and mobile service, or could it pursue an 		all-inclusive solution integrated with its back-office system?

The Division would need to use its own devices and mobile service.

	(c)	In order that we may determine the number of forms that would be integrated into the 		new mobile system, how many different forms are currently in use in the field?

The Division would need checklist, inspection results, correction notice and safety certificate forms along with the ability to add others as needs arise.

	(d)	How should pricing for these items be proposed?

(a) Per unit
(b) Per unit
(c) Per form

15.	The project management and external monitoring/assessment/reporting requirements, as 	outlined within section 5.2 and 5.7 while achievable, may be excessive for the size and scope of 	this project, and may increase the cost of the project.  Is the stated Deliverable Submission and 	Review Process, Setup and Configure / Build System project management approaches 	necessary and required, or is there flexibility on the project management and external 	monitoring/assessment/reporting requirements in order to reduce costs? Please elaborate as to 	the State's position and if/how a vendor may propose an alternative project implementation 	process based on a proven methodology?

The agency is open to vendors proposing the methodology, approach, tasks and deliverables that they believe are appropriate to successfully meet the agency’s requirements while mitigating project risks.  The agency is interested in focusing resources on the delivery of a system solution rather than “overhead” tasks that contribute little to the end product.      

5.2 Deliverable Submission and Review Process – The agency project team will be relatively small and should be able to review and sign-off on deliverables in a timely manner (if work products/deliverables are of high quality).  Vendors can clarify in their proposal their recommended approach and assumptions.  

5.7 Task 3 – Setup and Configure/Build System – This is a potentially substantial task and the scope can vary significantly if the solution is custom or COTS (or combination).   For a custom solution, this represents the “build” phase of the system lifecycle.  For a COTS solution, it is the configuration/customization phase.  Vendors should describe (including assumptions) their approach to delivering the solution.  For example, vendors that use an “agile” methodology might present sub-tasks that involve the “sprint” concept.  

The agency encourages vendors to propose a methodology that has been successful and is appropriate for this project.  The agency is most interested in meeting their requirements at a reasonable cost.      

16.	What is the budget for this project?

Fiscal year 1 = $180,000 Fiscal year 2 = $50,000
Total for the current biennium = $230,000 (this combines one-time and ongoing costs)
Biennium ends June 31, 2017.    

	If all cost proposals come in above a certain amount, would this RFP be cancelled? What is that 	amount?

The RFP would not necessarily be cancelled.  The agency, depending on State procurement rules, would possibly solicit updated quotes base on change in scope.  See above for the amount.

	Did the legislature allocate any funds specifically for this project?  If so, what is the amount 	allocated, and when does it need to be used?

Yes, see #16 above.

17.	Please identify instances where any agency employee has viewed or discussed a potential 	software application similar to the one being solicited in this RFP in the last 24 months. Please 	name the vendor(s), dates of contact and describe the nature of the contacts including whether 	pricing was discussed. Has the agency received any estimates or quotations for the services and 	software describe in this RFP, and if so, which ones and what were the amounts?

The agency has performed objective research to determine the viability of solutions in the market place to meet the agency’s needs.  This includes, vendor discussions, product demonstrations, and acquiring preliminary cost estimates.  Sometime back, the agency released a Request for Information (RFI).  Vendors involved in agency discussion included: GL Solutions, Praeses, MicroPact, Accela, and Salesforce.com.   The agency also solicited quotations from the Nevada Enterprise Information Technology Services (EITS) Division.   

18.	Can you clarity what you’re looking for related to project management?

The agency will have a part-time project manager assigned to the project.  The agency project manager, working with MHD management, will oversee agency staff to ensure they are performing their tasks, including deliverable reviews, testing, etc.  The vendor should have a project manager that will work closely with the agency manager to effectively manage the project.  In addition, the vendor should have an established, proven approach/methodology for managing similar projects.

19.	If both the Prime and subcontractor worked for a client that will be used as a reference, should 	the reference submit two separate questionnaires?

This can be one reference that represents both the prime and subcontractor.  Ideally, it will reflect the role each company had on the referenced project.  
20.	Would the State consider a comprehensive 100% cloud-based solution designed specifically for the public sector that cannot be hosted in State facilities? How will both “cloud” and “on-premise” solutions be graded and evaluated against the other? 

The agency is open to both cloud and state hosted solutions.  The state will evaluate the merits of each option (e.g. cost, benefit, risk, etc.).  Vendors are free to propose multiple options.  

21.	Did the State evaluate solutions that could meet its requirements through vendor demonstrations leading up to the RFP release? If so, what types and names of solutions and vendors were evaluated (vendor-hosted and on-premise)?

Please see #17 above.  The state did not formally “evaluate” vendors, they did collect information on available solutions and estimated costs.

22.	Did the State use any vendor(s) to help develop the RFP? If so, will the State please share the name of the vendor(s)?

No.

23.	Does the State have a budget allocated for this project?  If so, will the State provide the dollar amount?

Please see #16 above.

24.	What is the State’s desired implementation timeframe (project start to go-live). 

Ideally, the agency would like to implement the system in the June 2016 – December 2016 timeframe.  The production go-live would be January 2017.  This would leave the remaining five (5) months in the biennium for “fine tuning” and working out any issues.  

25.	Please confirm that all the functional, technical and interface requirements have been defined in the RFP. 

To the best of our knowledge at this point in time the requirements have been identified in terms of establishing the overall scope of the system.  There will likely be additional details identified during the project.  
  
Please see the answer to #5 regarding interfaces to other systems.  

26.	Please provide the final user count for back-office and portal users that will need access to the proposed solution. What is the anticipated volume of portal logins per month?

The agency anticipates having 16 users for back-office, with the capability for more in the future.  Public access users cannot be estimated as use by the public is not known.

27.	In section 3.3.5, how does the current Parks Databased support the Lot Rent Subsidy program?

The Lot Rent Subsidy is a subcomponent of the Parks Database and are contained one database.  The Parks Database contains data related to all the parks: e.g., Profile, location, owners, managers, # of spaces, etc.  The Lot Rent Subsidy data is linked to the Park (where the applicant/recipient resides) and tracks the rent subsidy applicants/recipients and related payment.  

In addition, please review pages 42 and 43 in Attachment N of the RFP, where it shows key data elements of the Lot Rent Subsidy Program and the user interface of the Parks Database.    

28.	Vendor typically has a 30-day billing cycle. In section 8.1.1, can vendor take exception to the State’s 45-60 day payment schedule?

Typically the state pays within a 30 day period.  The vendor can take exception to this and state it in their RFP in the “exceptions” section.  This can be discussed further in negotiations.    

29.	Regarding Escrow for Source Code in section 13.3.11.1 of the RFP: A Cloud Services Provider would be responsible for maintaining access in terms of performance and availability to the data. The data is owned by the Customer. The State would have full rights to extract their data at any time. Cloud Services Provider does not typically offer source code for escrow because it is inapplicable to software delivered as a service subscription through a multitenant architecture. Therefore, can this requirement be adjusted for pure software-as-a-service (SaaS) solutions?

The vendor should address this in their proposal under “exceptions” or “assumptions”.  The State does have full ownership of its data and must have access to retrieve it at any time.  

30.	Regarding Irrevocable Licenses in section 13.3.11.1 of the RFP: Cloud Services Provider is proposing a cloud-based SaaS solution that would be configured to meet the State’s specific requirements. Cloud Services Provider is not physically delivering software. While relevant in traditional on-premise, perpetual or irrevocable license software, this requirement does not make sense in a cloud computing model. Therefore, can this requirement be adjusted for pure SaaS solutions?

The vendor should address this in their proposal under “exceptions” or “assumptions”.  

31.	Is the State considering using card readers at the counter for payment processing?  If so, would this need to be part of this project, or at a later date?

Yes, the state will be using card readers at the counter for payment processing in two locations.  Wells Fargo is the credit card processing service for the state.  


32.	To understand your fee types, please provide a copy of your current fee schedule.

They are available on the MHD website:  http://mhd.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/mhdnvgov/Content/Resources/MHD_FeeChart4_2013.pdf

33.	Does the State require a public-facing portal?  If so, what capabilities should this portal provide (i.e permit applications, inspection requests)?

Defined in MHD RFP Attachment O ~ Requirements Matrix.

34.	Will the State need off-line inspection capability for remote areas, as part of this project or at a later date? If so, how many field users will need offline access?

The agency does not fully understand the definition of “off-line inspection capability for remote areas”.  

The agency envisions inspectors being able to capture inspection information on mobile devices in the field whether or not they have connectivity to the host system.  Ideally mobile devices, used by inspectors will sync with the host system when connectivity is available.    

There will be six (6) inspectors in the field that will be using mobile devices while performing inspections.  Additional devices could be added in the future.     

35.	Is the State using any GIS tool?  If so, please provide the current version.

No.

36.	What type of permits do you currently work with, and could we get samples or copies?  How many permits are issued per year?

Permit types are defined in attachment N, page 5. Forms are defined in attachment N, page 7 and sample documents can be downloaded from our website at http://mhd.nv.gov/Content/Resources/Forms_InspectPermits  
The Division issues approximately 2,500 permits per year.

37.	Could we get samples of your current inspections being performed? How many inspections are performed per year?

A sample of current inspections being performed may be referenced in our “Residential Checklist” form and can be downloaded from our website at http://mhd.nv.gov/Content/Resources/Forms_InspectPermits
The Division issues approximately 2,500 permits per year.

38.	Could we also get samples of permit/license applications and forms the State will want to incorporate in the new system? 

A sample of a permit application can be downloaded from our website at http://mhd.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/mhdnvgov/Content/Resources/PermitApplicationForm.pdf 
A sample of a license applications can be downloaded from our website at http://mhd.nv.gov/Content/Resources/Applications_New/

39.	Requirement #2.4 - Please describe what database is storing the active licensees/permits information that will require a look-up?

The agency does not understand the question.  In the current environment Licensee data is maintained in the Licensing Database and permits data is maintained in the Permit Database (Access).  Both these systems will be replaced with the new system resulting from this project.  The current legacy systems are data “silos” where data is not integrated across business functions (e.g. permits, licensees, etc.).

Requirement #2.4 in the Requirements Matrix spreadsheet, is part of FUNCTIONAL AREA:  2.0 - Permits and Inspections.  Requirement #2.4 presents the need to be able to easily look up (in the new system) related information.  For example if a licensee (contractor) is associated with a permit – a user should be able to look up a permit, see the licensee data and ensure they have a valid license.  	

40.	Requirement #2.11 - What type of seal and certificate information is required for input into the proposed solution?  E.g. What fields?

Seal information/fields required for input is shown in the examples of IN labels, FH insignias, CC insignias, and MC insignias and can be downloaded from our website at http://mhd.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/mhdnvgov/Content/Inspections/ComplianceLabelsandInsignias.pdf

Certificate information/fields required for input is shown in the example below
[image: ]

41.	Requirement #2.12b - What are “IN labels, FH insignias, CC insignias, and MC insignias?” Could you please provide examples?

Definitions and examples of IN labels, FH insignias, CC insignias, and MC insignias can be downloaded from our website at http://mhd.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/mhdnvgov/Content/Inspections/ComplianceLabelsandInsignias.pdf

42.	Requirement #3.3 - What is “RME option?”

RME is defined as “Responsible Managing Employee” and is defined further in NRS 489.1353,
[bookmark: NRS489Sec1353]      NRS 489.1353  “Responsible managing employee” defined.  “Responsible managing employee” means the person designated by the employer to exercise authority in connection with his or her principal or employer’s business in the following manner:
     1. To make technical and administrative decisions.
     2. To hire, superintend, promote, transfer, lay off, discipline or discharge other employees and to direct them, either personally or through others, or effectively recommend such action on behalf of his or her principal or employer.
      (Added to NRS by 1979, 1201)
Further information on RME may be found on our website at http://mhd.nv.gov/Content/Resources/Applications_New/
[bookmark: _GoBack]
43.	Requirement #4.5 - This is blank.  Please confirm if this is intentional or provide the requirement description.

Requirement #4.5 in the Requirements Matrix is blank.  There is not requirement in the row of the spreadsheet. 

44.	Requirement 36.19 - What is the database/technology used and available APIs for the Title database?

The agency does not understand the reference to Requirement “36.19”.

There are currently two (2) systems that support the Title function within the MHD.  
Title Database, which is a custom application developed in foxpro.  This is where title “data” is stored.  This system is to be replaced within the scope of this project.  
OpenText document management system (COTS) which stores scanned title “documents”.  This system is not being replace as part of the scope of this project.

In addition, there is not a requirement to interface with the OpenText document management system within the scope of this project.  Please see question #5 above. 

ALL ELSE REMAINS THE SAME FOR RFP 3238.


Vendor must sign and return this amendment with proposal submitted.

	Vendor Name:
	

	Authorized Signature:
	

	Title:
	
	Date:
	






	This document must be submitted in the “State Documents” section/tab of vendors’ technical proposal.
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